

MINUTES OF DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE Tuesday, 31 March 2015

- MEMBERS PRESENT: Councillor Steve Holgate (Chair), Councillor Dave Rogerson (Vice-Chair) and Councillors Charlie Bromilow, Henry Caunce, Jean Cronshaw, Christopher France, Danny Gee. Keith Iddon, June Molyneaux, Alistair Morwood, Mick Muncaster, Richard Toon and Alan Whittaker
- **RESERVES:** Councillors John Dalton
- OFFICERS: Jennifer Moore (Head of Planning), Paul Whittingham (Development Control Team Leader), Caron Taylor (Planning Officer), Alex Jackson (Legal Services Team Leader) and Cathryn Filbin (Democratic and Member Services Officer)
- **APOLOGIES:** Councillors David Dickinson and Paul Walmsley

15.DC.116 Minutes of meeting Tuesday, 10 March 2015 of Development Control Committee

RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting of the Development Control Committee on 10 March 2015 be approved as a correct record for signature by the Chair.

15.DC.117 Declarations of Any Interests

Councillor John Dalton declared a non-pecuniary interest in item 3d 14/00791/FUL - Land 60m west of no. 3 Castle Walks, Croston and left the meeting for consideration of this item.

15.DC.118 Planning applications to be determined

The Director of Public Protection, Streetscene and Community submitted 7 reports for planning permission consideration.

In considering the applications, Members of the Committee took into account the agenda reports, the addendum, and the verbal representations and submissions provided by officers and individuals.

The Head of Planning drew attention to addendum 2 which referred to a Ministerial Statement by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government made to

the House of Parliament on 25 March 2015 and including clarification to the recent Statement of 28 November 2014 which related to small scale developers, custom and selfbuilders.

The Chair asked members of the Committee to consider the content of this statement while making their decision.

15.DC.118a 14/01297/OUT - St Peter's Vicarage, Harpers Lane, Chorley

Registered speaker: Joyce Nelson (objector)

RESOLVED (unanimously) – That outline planning consent be approved subject to a condition requiring a suitable Construction Management Plan, the conditions detailed within the report in the agenda and delegated authority be given to officers, in consultation with the Chair and Vice Chair of the Committee, to either amend condition two in the report or apply an additional condition to protect the upper branches of trees T14 during construction.

15.DC.118b 14/01316/FUL - Winter View Farm, Parr Lane, Eccleston

Registered speaker: Sophie Marshall (applicant's agent)

RESOVLED (unanimously) – That planning permission be approved subject to conditions detailed in the addendum.

In response to a request for clarification from the Chair, the Legal Services Team Leader advised that as a Non-Executive Director of Adactus the Chair did not have a pecuniary interest in the following application.

15.DC.118c 15/00100/FUL - 2 Thirlmere Road, Chorley, PR7 2JH

RESOLVED (unanimously) – That planning permission be approved subject to conditions detailed within the report in the agenda, and the amended and additional conditions detailed in the addendum.

(At this point Councillor John Dalton left the meeting before the consideration of the following item.)

15.DC.118d 14/00791/FUL - Land 60m west of no. 3, Castle Walks, Croston

Registered speaker: Graeme Luxton (applicant's agent)

A motion was proposed and seconded for the decision to be deferred to allow time for members of the Committee to visit the site of the proposals. When put to the vote the motion was lost (5:8:0).

RESOLVED (8:0:5) – That planning permission be refused for the following reasons:

1. Criteria (f) of Policy 1 of the Central Lancashire Core Strategy states that in smaller villages, development will typically be small scale and limited to appropriate infilling, conversion of buildings and proposals to meet local need, unless there are exceptional reasons for larger scale development schemes. The development does not meet a specific local need and there are no exceptional reasons overriding these matters which justify granting it planning permission. The proposed development is therefore contrary to criteria (f) of Policy 1 of the Central Lancashire Core Strategy.

- 2. There is a deficit of amenity open space in Croston and he site is identified as open space under Policy HW2 of the emerging Chorley Local Plan. Development resulting in the loss of such sites is only acceptable when alternative provision is provided. Whilst the development incorporates the retention of some of the site as open space and will open it up to the public, the amount of retained open space constitutes only a small proportion of the site so opening up this land to the public is not sufficient to outweigh the harm caused by the loss of the majority of the site. The proposed development is therefore contrary to Policy HW2 of the emerging Chorley Local Plan.
- 3. The proposed development would lead to the loss of a large proportion of open space which makes a significant contribution to the character of the area. The reduction in the open character of the site would be contrary to criteria a) of Policy BNE1 of the emerging Chorley Local Plan which seeks to ensure development does not have a significantly detriment impact on the local area.
- 15.DC.118e 14/01087/FUL The Queens, 52 Chapel Street, Chorley

RESOLVED (unanimously) – That planning permission be approved subject to conditions detailed within the report in the agenda.

15.DC.118f 15/00058/FUL - The Barn, Dean Hall Lane, Euxton, Chorley, PR7 6ER

RESOLVED (13:0:1) – That planning permission be approved subject to conditions detailed within the report in the agenda.

15.DC.118g 14/01237/FUL - Astley Park Health and Fitness Club, 1-3 Park Road, Chorley

RESOLVED (unanimously) – That planning permission be approved subject to conditions detailed within the report in the agenda.

15.DC.119 Tree Preservation Order No.10 (Whittle-le-Woods) 2014

Members of the Committee received a report of the Director of Public Protection, Streetscene and Community which sought confirmation of Tree Preservation Order No. 10 (Whittle-le-Woods) 2014 in light of an objection received.

In response to the objection received, it was proposed that tree T6 be removed from the order as it was not within land owned by the objector and was therefore not affected by the approved planning proposals.

RESOLVED (unanimously) – That Tree Preservation Order No. 10 (Whittle-le-Woods) 2014 be confirmed with a modification removing T6 from the Order.

15.DC.120 Appeals and other decisions

There were no appeals or other decisions to report.

Chair

Date